ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COWM TTEE ON M LI TARY AND VETERANS' AFFAI RS
February 10, 2005
1: 08 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bill Thomas
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Ji m El ki ns
Representative Lesil MQiire

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senat or Charlie Huggins

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW NMARI NE EXCHANGE OF ALASKA
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

PAUL FUHS, Board President

Mari ne Exchange of Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the Marine Exchange
of Al aska.

CAPTAI N ED PACE, Executive Director

Mari ne Exchange of Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the Marine Exchange
of Al aska.

Bl LL BENNI NG, Operati ons Manager

HOUSE M.V COW TTEE -1- February 10, 2005



Mari ne Exchange of Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding the Marine
Exchange of Al aska.

JOHN PARROTT, Vice President/ Al aska General Manager

Totem Ccean Trail er Express

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the WMarine Exchange tracking
system

NI CK MARRONE, Vi ce President

Seafarers International Union

San Francisco, California

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Asked questions regarding the Marine
Exchange tracki ng systens.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House Special Committee on Mlitary
and Veterans' Affairs neeting to order at 1:08:43 PM
Representatives Lynn, Dahlstrom Thomas, G ssna, and G uenberg
were present at the call to order.

OVERVI EW  MARI NE EXCHANGE OF ALASKA

1:10: 04 PM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the only order of business would be an
overvi ew of the Marine Exchange of Al aska.

1: 10: 22 PM

PAUL FUHS, Board President, Marine Exchange of Al aska, stated
that the organization was forned about three years ago to
provide services to the maritinme industry. He comented that
after the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001, the
government was able to track the hijacked airplanes to determ ne
what had occurred, but that tracking capability had never been
used on the water. He stated that the Marine Exchange of Al aska
has been developing a tracking capability primarily for search
and rescue. The inpetus for the project was the 2001 sinking of
the F/V Arctic Rose with 15 people on board. He remarked that
after the sinking, it took six hours to discover that the sister
ship was seven mles away and could have assisted the Arctic
Rose. At that point, the Mrine Exchange began working on | ong-

HOUSE M.V COW TTEE - 2- February 10, 2005



range tracking and GCeographical Information System (GS) data
systens for plotting data.

MR. FUHS stated that the Marine Exchange of Al aska has received
a grant from the United States Coast Guard (USCG of $1.3

mllion to test the tracking system "which we think will becone
the standard for the entire United States.” He expl ai ned that
one inpetus for this system is that Alaska is so vast, wth
30,000 mles of coastline. He commented that in some ports a

person could Ilook through a pair of binoculars and see
everything that is comng in, but in Al aska that cannot be done.
He explained that another reason the Marine Exchange of Al aska
was formed was that "no state is nore maritinme than Al aska.” He
said that 90 percent of the goods that conme into the state cone
by water, and 95 percent of the state's exports |eave on the
wat er . He said that Alaska could not function as an econony
wi thout the local maritine trades.

1:12: 07 PM

MR. FUHS said that another reason that the Marine Exchange of
Al aska was fornmed was because "the only tine people ever hear
about the marine trades is when sonebody's had a weck and oil
is spilled all over, or a ship has crashed and ... people are
dying and things like that. But very few people have an
appreciation for what the maritine trades actually bring to
Al aska.” He said that the Mari ne Exchange of Al aska has brought
together all the wunions, the enployers, all the training
facilities, including Al aska Vocational Technical Center (AVTEC)
and Qutside training facilities because there isn't a
coordi nated program to provide training for Alaskans to work in
the maritinme trades. He pointed out that the Departnent of
Labor (DOL) found that about 45 percent of nmaritine jobs are
filled by nonresidents. He said, "These are good jobs but many
of them are licensed jobs, and you can't work unless you have
the license and you have the education. A lot of our kids grew
up on the water ... because we're a maritinme state, so it just
seened like a natural to us."

MR, FUHS commented that there were many people in the audience
who were attending a collaborative consortium and "we had sone
really great neetings today, and we're going to file a report
from that. W' ve gotten a grant from [Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnment Conmissioner Geg OCaray] to put this
whole thing together, and it's the first time that it's ever
happened for the maritinme trade."

HOUSE M.V COW TTEE - 3- February 10, 2005



MR. FUHS then introduced Captain Ed Page, who once headed up the
USCG Marine Safety O fice in Juneau. He said Captain Page used
to be the Captain of the Port in Long Beach, California, where
he set up "a simlar governnent/private sector consortium" He
remar ked, "We've got great conpanies up here in the maritine
trades. They want to operate safely. They want to contribute
to our state, and they've nmade a real commtnent” to hiring
Al askans.

1:14:13 PM

CAPTAIN ED PACGE, Executive Director, Marine Exchange of Al aska,
stated the Marine Exchange of Alaska is a non-profit with the
m ssion to provide information, conmunications, and services to
help ensure safe, secur e, efficient, and environnmental |y
responsi bl e maritine operations.

1:15: 07 PM

CAPTAI N PAGE expl ained that marine exchanges originated in the
1800s to exchange naritine informtion. Initially a spygl ass
was used to nonitor ship arrivals, and then the information
woul d be exchanged between interested parties. Now the exchange
organi zati ons use telephones, faxes, satellite comrunications,
and ot her transponder systens. The Al aska Exchange is part of
the Maritime Information Services of North Anerica, which is a
coalition of non-profit organizations in the United States and
Canada, Captain Page said, and he noted that he is the president
of that group.

1:16:15 PM

CAPTAI N PAGE named the founding nenbers of the Marine Exchange,
and pointed out that the Mirine Exchange interacts wth
different segnents of the maritinme conmmunity, including tankers,
ferries, USCG vessels, container ships, and cruise ships.

1:17: 23 PM

CAPTAI N PAGE enphasized that Al aska needs qualified mariners.
He posited that the exchange's nost inportant program is Pride
in Education to help Al askans operate vessels that ply Al aska's
wat ers. He said that once Al askans have been given information
and necessary tools, they will be safe, secure, efficient, and
environmental |y responsi bl e. He listed nore of the exchange's
progranms: nmaritinme database, printing updated charts, vessel

HOUSE M.V COW TTEE -4- February 10, 2005



t racki ng, and conpl i ance W th safety, security, and
envi ronnment al regul ati ons.

1:18:28 PM

CAPTAIN PACE stated that it is "critical to our way of life
that the maritinme industry ... gets our natural resources to
market." He added that his group supports educational prograns

and has been going to mddle schools to get youth interested.
Regardi ng security, he said, ships are prine targets. A cruise
ship with several thousand people "could be a 9/11-type cali ber

event, especially if you took a couple ... simltaneously."
Tankers, container ships, cargo vessels, and maritine facilities
are targets too, he said. He stated that knowi ng vessel

| ocations is inportant.
1:19: 33 PM

CAPTAIN PACE said the threat is being addressed as a shared
conmm t ment . The USCG the state, and the narine industry has
spent mllions in security plans, training, and new equi pnent
while following the new Maritime Security Act. He said, "W
can't wait until people cone right up to our doorstep and see if
they're K. W want to know where those ships canme from and we
want to know where they are right now to help manage our
threat."

1: 20: 20 PM

CAPTAIN PACE said Admral Collins has talked about |[|ocating
ships with an automatic identification system and a |ong range
tracking system that would aid in providing information on
vessels long before they reach our ports. He said the exchange
devel oped the Automatic Secure Vessel Tracking System which
tracks vessels around the world at a the | ow cost of $3 per day.
He said Congress saw the nerit of wusing existing maritine
syst ens.

1: 22: 14 PM

MR FUHS said the dobal Mrine Distress Signaling System
(GWDSS) is on ships, and by hitting a trigger, the ship's
| ocati on can be determ ned. He said they can al so be programred
renotely.

1: 22: 45 PM

HOUSE M.V COW TTEE - 5- February 10, 2005



CAPTAIN PAGE said it is easier to protect a vessel by know ng

its location. It can also identify a suspect vessel. The
exchange al so uses satellite systens which track a vessel every
two hours for the past year or two. The vessels that don't

share informati on are then suspect.
1:24.36 PM

MR. FUHS said there is incentive for ships to work with the USCG
because they will have fewer inspections.

1: 26: 07 PM

CAPTAI N PAGE gave an exanple of data from the sunmer of 2004,
and showed the col or-coded positions of vessels.

1:26: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked if there is an identifier for
foreign-flagged vessels.

1:27: 38 PM

CAPTAIN PAGE said currently there aren’t nany foreign flagged
ships in the program but it could be done. "I would think that
everybody who is doing the right thing should participate,”
because they' Il get express |lane privil eges, he said.

1:27.:55 PM

MR. FUHS said the exchange is working with USCG which requires
96- hour advance notification. The ships currently supply
paperwork, but with the new system there is actual know edge of
everywhere that ship has been

1: 28: 31 PM

CAPTAIN PAGE said if a ship's systemis turned off, it becones
an anomaly to be watched. He said the satellite can still pick
up the location, but it cannot get identifying information.
When he was in the Coast Guard, he would have to fly for severa
hours to track the unknown boats, he said.

1: 30: 16 PM

CAPTAIN PAGE said the Coast Guard called the exchange when a
vessel was adrift and asked it to track it. He said he was

HOUSE M.V COW TTEE - 6- February 10, 2005



wat ching the vessel from Juneau and when the Coast CGuard called
and said it had sighted the vessel and it was anchored, the
exchange could tell fromJuneau that it was actually drifting.

1. 30: 55 PM
MR, FUHS said the programis accurate to about five feet.

CAPTAI N PAGE said the exchange was working on a different system
that is like an aircraft transponder. Receiver sites need to be
built, and there is a grant from the USCG that the exchange is
wor ki ng on now.

1: 32: 49 PM

MR. FUHS said the exchange has a contract with the Ofice of
Naval Intelligence to provide data.

CAPTAIN PAGE said the exchange works out of two locations in
downt own Juneau. It is password-protected, so conpani es can use
it for their business only.

1: 34: 32 PM

CAPTAI N PAGE showed the conmittee live conputer screens of the
output from the system and wal ked the commttee through the
details. He said the benefits were related to security,
envi ronnment al response, efficiency, and safety.

1: 37: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS asked if there was any tracking devices on
the crab boat that just went down.

CAPTAI N PAGE said there was not.
1: 38: 14 PM

MR. FUHS showed the past data of the MV Tustunena in the Al aska
Mari ne H ghway System He proposed an "adopt a ship" program
where students can track individual ships for education
pur poses, including email comrunications fromthe boats. It can
al so report on weather fromall weather buoys.

1: 38: 53 PM

HOUSE M.V COW TTEE -7- February 10, 2005



MR. FUHS said weather buoys provide wave period, atnospheric
pressure, w nd speed, direction, wave height, air and water
tenperature, and ice accretion. Each data point is no nore that
six mnutes old, he added.

1: 39: 56 PM

CAPTAIN PAGE said this is all about exchanging information with
new t echnol ogy. He said the exchange has been working with the
federal government and now wants to get Al aska invol ved.

1:41: 14 PM

CAPTAIN PAGE said there is a whole suite of indexes and
overlays. He said they are putting transponders on buil di ngs.

MR. FUHS said it can also calculate a ship's speed.
1:43:15 PM

NI CK MARRONE, Vice President, Seafarers International Union, San
Franci sco asked what the cost is to the vessel.

CAPTAIN PAGE said the Automatic Identification Systenms (AlS)
equi pnent is $8, 000. O her equipnent is required, and sone of
it is old equipnent being reprogramred. He noted that the
equi pnent is being tested all the tine.

MR, FUHS said the AIS system is expensive but there are cheaper
systens for $500.

1:45: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS asked about the Al aska Departnent of Fish
and Gane using the tracking systemto track fishery violations.

CAPTAIN PAGE said there is another system for fisheries, but it
is one-way information, and it doesn't go to the USGS. Captain
Page said he told the departnment that there is a better system

1.47.36 PM
MR. FUHS said the USGS is spending nore noney on false rescues

than real ones, but the new system can help verify the
si tuation.

HOUSE M.V COW TTEE - 8- February 10, 2005



CAPTAIN PAGE said the information is being archived, nostly for
security. It is easier to archive data that cone in every two
hours, but not so nuch for the AIS data that cone in every 12
seconds. He said the systemis in a "growth node."

1:50: 51 PM

MR. FUHS said the exchange is asking the state for honel and
security noney fromthe state's allocation. "W can nmake this a
24/ 7 operation for about $250-300, 000. The Marine Hi ghway

Systemwants the capability, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked where the funding request is
com ng from

MR. FUHS said it is being nade through the admnistration, and
the Departnent of Transportation is supporting it, and the
Departnent of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs has the honel and
security noney.

1:52:10 PM

CAPTAIN PAGE, in response to a question, said kayaks are the
smal | est vessels that can be tracked.

BI LL BENNING Operations Mnager, Marine Exchange of Al aska,
said the AIS mght be affected by weather but satellites aren't.
The biggest hurdle in Al aska i s npbuntai nous geography.

1:53: 39 PM

MR. BENNI NG said the systemuses a variety of satellites.

CAPTAIN PAGE said sone satellites are better for Alaska than
ot hers.

1:54: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked about weat her overl ays.

MR FUHS said it is hard to get broadband to a vessel, but
emails can be sent with a satellite, and therefore vessels can

get weat her buoy information.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA said she is reading The Perfect Storm and
said weather information can hel p people on the high seas.

HOUSE M.V COW TTEE - 9- February 10, 2005



1:56: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked about a docunented procedure that
nmust be foll owed regardi ng honel and security.

CAPTAI N PAGE said they are constantly in contact wth the USCG
He explained that the systens are still evolving; it is all new
The AI'S contract started in Cctober, and there are now six sites
up. The Al aska Exchange is a | eader in these systens.

1:59: 31 PM
CHAI R LYNN asked what the |egislature can do.

MR FUHS said to "encourage the Departnent of Mlitary &
Veterans' Affairs to accept our proposal to advance the system”
Some people in the departnent have seen this presentation.

CAPTAIN PAGE said there have been several requests into the
departnent, and he listed staff who have seen the presentation.

2:00: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS asked if the system tracks mlitary
vessel s.

CAPTAIN PAGE said the system tracks sonme USCG vessels, but no
other mlitary vessels.

JOHN PARROTT, Vice President/ Al aska General Manager, Totem Qcean
Trail er Express, Anchorage, said the exchange in Alaska is one
of the youngest exchanges but it is leading the field. He said
as a founder of the organization, he is "very proud of what
t hese guys have done.”™ He added that his ships are tracked with
zero inpact on their operation. It is a very good system and
he said he hasn't found any difficulties.

2:02: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked how much need there is for
maritime training facilities, and if there is a need for
merchant marine or mariner acadeny in "this part of the
country."

CHAIR LYNN said there is interest in such an acadeny in Kodi ak

HOUSE M.V COW TTEE -10- February 10, 2005



CAPTAIN PAGE said there are many jobs available for people with

maritime training, and "training in Alaska is our goal." He
said he doesn't want to hear about people flying to New Ol eans
to get training. Maritime jobs pay well and are critical to

Al aska's wel |l being, he concl uded.
2:05:28 PM

VR. FUHS had nunerous people in the audience introduce
thenmsel ves. He said there is also interest in maritine training
wi thin the secondary schools in Al aska.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting was
adj ourned at 2:08:26 PM

HOUSE M.V COW TTEE -11- February 10, 2005



